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Architectural Review Board Staff Report 
 

Project Type:  Site Development Section Plan   
 
Meeting Date:  April 14, 2016 
 
From:   Jessica Henry   
   Project Planner 
 
Cc:   Aimee Nassif, Planning & Development Services Director 
 
Location: 11 Arnage Road 
 
Applicant:  Thouvenot, Wade, & Moerchen, Inc. on behalf of PGB Investments 
 

Description: River Crossings, Lot 4 (Holiday Inn Express): A Site Development Section 
Plan, Landscape Plan, Lighting Plan, Architectural Elevations and 
Architect’s Statement of Design for a 3.17 acre tract of land zoned “PC” 
Planned Commercial District located east of Arnage Rd., north of 
Chesterfield Airport Road. 

 
PROPOSAL SUMMARY 
The request is for a four story, 91 room hotel located within the Chesterfield Commons Six 
development. The proposed hotel is 52,278 square feet in size and will be located on Lot 4, which 
is 3.17 acres in size. The River Crossings development is zoned “PC” Planned Commercial District 
and is governed under the terms and conditions of City of Chesterfield Ordinance 2556. The 
exterior building materials will be comprised of EIFS, stone, brick, and a blue painted metal 
canopy. The roof of the structure will be a flat roof with a parapet wall to screen roof-mounted 
mechanical units.  
 
The request was presented for review by the Architectural Review Board (ARB) at the February 
11, 2016 meeting.  A number of concerns were raised by Staff and ARB members and a 
recommendation for denial was passed by a vote of 5-0.  Following the meeting, Staff prepared 
a letter detailing these concerns. The Applicant subsequently made substantial revisions to the 
request and has requested to reappear before the ARB.  
 

III. B. 
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Aerial Image of Subject Site and River Crossings 

 

A summary of the concerns raised by the Architectural Review Board and discussed at length 
during the meeting along with Staff input follows. 
 

1. The building lacks articulation and features overwhelmingly flat façades that do not 
meet the design standards for the Chesterfield Valley. 

The applicant has submitted revised Architectural Elevations with integrated vertical brick 
columns on all four elevations. Additionally, a revised color site plan showing the 
increased building articulation has been provided. The Site Development Section Plan 
packet will be updated to show the revised building footprint prior to being forwarded to 
the Planning Commission for review. 

2. There is an overall lack of coordination and integration between material and color 
changes and architectural elements. 

The applicant has eliminated one of the three proposed brick colors and has changed the 
brick application to largely correspond to the vertical changes in building articulation, 
although a series of flat red brick strips within the flat sections of beige bricks is proposed.  
A horizontal stone band delineates the first story of the building, which is entirely red 
brick, from the subsequent stories which feature a mix of the beige and red brick colors. 
A white EIFS band and cornice is carried around the building for a sense of completion. 

Additionally, the use of the proposed stone blend material is now limited to the entry 
canopy columns. The metal entry canopy remains the bright blue color previously 
proposed. 
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3. The proposed pedestrian level accent lights do not feature appropriately decorative 
housings. 

The applicant has eliminated accent lighting from the proposal. The proposed site lighting 
is now limited to pole-mounted parking lot fixtures, wall sconces, and flush-mount canopy 
fixtures. Each of these are fully-shielded, utilitarian fixtures with full cut-off optics. 

4. The window frames shown in rendering do not correspond to proposed material. 

This has been corrected. 

5. The proposed blue accent lights are not integrated with the building architecture. 

The applicant has eliminated accent lighting from the proposal. 

6. The colors portrayed on the Architectural Elevations do not accurately correspond to the 
material samples presented at the Architectural Review Board meeting. 

The applicant has adjusted the color of the brick; however, further adjustment may be 
necessary as the brick continues to have a very bold appearance. 

7. The Architectural Rendering does not accurately portray the proposed building. 

The applicant has submitted revised documents for the Board’s consideration. 

Below is a comparison of the previously reviewed and currently proposed Architectural Elevations. 
 

 
Architectural Elevation presented at 02/11/16 ARB Meeting 

 
Currently proposed Architectural Elevation 
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SUMMARY OF INFORMATION PROVIDED IN 02/11/16 ARB MEETING REPORT 

The subject site is located within the River Crossings development which contains eight separate 
lots and six buildings to date. The applicant is proposing a four story building of nearly forty-eight 
feet in height and 52,278 square feet in size. Although this is the tallest building in the 
development, Ordinance 2566 specifically limits the building on the subject site to four stories 
and forty-eight feet in height, exclusive of parapets and roof screening, whereas a maximum of 
three stories and forty-five feet is prescribed for the other lots within the development. 
 
Ordinance 2566 includes specific design guidelines for the River Crossings development. Below 
is a listing of the applicable guidelines (in italics) for the proposed Holiday Inn Express along with 
Staff input (in bold).  
 

1. A minimum of seventy-five (75%) of the exterior walls of all buildings will be constructed 
of brick masonry units. The building is constructed primarily of brick in two colors. 

2. Building facades should be articulated using color, arrangement, or change in materials 
to emphasize the façade elements. The planes of the exterior walls may be varied in 
height, depth, or direction. Extremely long facades shall be designed with sufficient 
building articulations and landscaping to avoid a monotonous or overpowering 
appearance. As discussed above, the applicant has introduced greater articulation into 
the building design and has altered the material patterns and arrangement. 

3. All rooftop equipment will be screened from normal mid-range view lines by building 
parapets and/or roof screens constructed of metal. The applicant is proposing roof 
parapets that will fully screen the rooftop equipment, as shown by the sight-line study 
included in the submittal packets. 

4. Service areas and trash enclosures will also be constructed of brick masonry units. Gates 
will be made of unpainted wood boards. The trash enclosure is constructed of the same 
brick as the primary building. Cedar wood gates are proposed. 

As previously mentioned, the accent lighting was removed from the proposed. The lighting plan 
proposes the typical fully shielded, full cut-off pole mounted parking lot light fixtures and building 
entry wall mounted light fixtures. Additionally, canopy light fixtures are proposed at the entry. 
Each of these fixtures meets City code requirements.  
 
Finally, no changes are proposed to the previously presented Landscape Plan. 
 
DEPARTMENTAL INPUT 
Staff is requesting recommendations from the ARB on the Site Development Section Plan, 
Landscape Plan, Lighting Plan, Architectural Elevations and Architect’s Statement of Design.  Be 
advised, this project is still going through development review by City Staff and will not proceed 
to the Planning Commission until all outstanding items have been addressed. All 
recommendations made by the ARB will be included in Staff’s report to the Planning Commission. 
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MOTION 
The following options are provided to the Architectural Review Board for consideration relative 
to this application: 
 
1)  “I move to forward the Site Development Section Plan, Landscape Plan, Lighting Plan, 

Architectural Elevations and Architect's Statement of Design for River Crossings, Lot 4 
(Holiday Inn Express), as presented, with a recommendation for approval (or denial) to the 
Planning Commission.”  

 
2) “I move to forward the Site Development Section Plan, Landscape Plan, Lighting Plan, 

Architectural Elevations and Architect's Statement of Design for  River Crossings, Lot 4 
(Holiday Inn Express), to the Planning Commission with the following recommendations…”  

 
Attachments 

1. Architectural Review Packet Submittal   
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